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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT l
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA-

Richmend Division l'f AUG 2 11596 mJD

U.S. DISTRICT ¢
mﬂmﬁm#ﬂM)V

MARK DEANE,

Plaintiff,

Civil Action No. 5 96 /6 6

GARY DEAN LIGHT and JOHN DOE,
jointly and individually,
agents and employees of the
Food and Drug Administration,

a division of the United States
Department of Health & Human
Services, an agency of the
United States of America,

N Nt N S A S N S N S o S S e S S

Defendants.

Serve:
Gary D. Light United States Attorney for
13906 Saratoga Avenue the Eastern District of VA
Laurel, Maryland 20707 Main Street Center
(Prince George's County) 18th Floor

Richmond, Virginia 23219
John Doe
¢/o Food and Drug Administration Attorney General of the
5600 Fishers Lane, Room 12Al6 United States
Rockville, Maryland 20857 Department of Justice
(Montgomery County) Main Justice Building

10th and Constitutinal Ave. NW

Washington, D.C. 20530

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Mark Deane, by counsel, moves this Court for
judgment and damages resulting from violations of his
constitutional and civil rights, and respectfully states the

following: o



PARTIES

1. At all times relevant herein, plaintiff Mark Deane
("Deane") was and 1s a citizen of the United States of America,
the Commonwealth of Virginia, and a resident of the County of
Henrico.

2. At all times relevant herein, defendant Gary Dean
Light ("defendant Light"), was and is resident of the State of
Maryland, and is and was an agent and employee of the Food and
Drug Administration ("FDA"), a division of the United States
Department of Health & Human Services, an agency of the United
States of America.

3. At all times relevant herein, and on information
and belief, defendant John Doe ("defendant Doce")whose true name
is unknown at this time, but on information and belief he was and
is an agent and employee of the FDA, a division of the United
States Department of Health & Human Services, an agency of the

United States of America.
4. Defendants are sued jointly and individually, with
relief being sought against each defendant, jointly and

severally, as acting in concert or in cooperation with each

other.



5. Each and all the acts of defendants Light and Doe,
set forth herein, were done by them under the color and pretense
of the Constitution, statutes, and regulations of the United
States and the Executive Branch of the United States Government.
Defendants' acts were committed by virtue of and under the
authority of the defendants, as agents of the FDA, a division of
the Department of Health and Human Services of the United States.

JURISDICTION and VENUE

6. This action arises under the Constitution of the
United States, particularly under the provisions of the Fourth
and Fifth Amendments thereto. The jurisdiction of this Court is
invoked pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1343 (a).

7. This Court also has pendent jurisdiction over the
State claims set forth herein. Since the State claims of
assault, false arrest, false imprisonment, and intentional
infliction of emotional distress, arise from the same
transactions and occurrences as the federal constitutional and
civil rights claims, judicial economy demands that these pendent
claims be tried together and at the same time with the federal
causes of action set forth herein.

8. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§ 1391(e) (2)and (3).



FACTS

9. On or about April 11, 1996, Deane, an employee of
Philip Morris Incorporated, doing business as Philip Morris
U.S.A. ("Philip Morris"), received a telephone call at his home
in Henrico County, Virginia, from a male identifying himself as
an agent of the "FBI" (Federal Bureau of Investigation).

10. The agent told Deane that Deane's name had been
provided to the agent by a former Philip Morris employee who had
told the agent that Deane was one who would "tell the truth,"
that he, the agent, wished to interview Deane about his
employment at Philip Morris, and that he wanted to conduct the
interview at Deane's home the next day, April 12, 1996, at 5:30
p.m. Because the person had identified himself as an FRBI agent,
Deane agreed and consented to the meeting.

11. On April 12, 1996, during his normal work shift at
Philip Morris, Deane informed his supervisor of the telephone
call he had received from the FBI agent.

12. sShortly thereafter, Deane met with an attorney for
Philip Morris who advised Deane of his right to have counsel
present during any such interview with the agent, should he wish

to have counsel present.



13. Deane informed the attorney that he did not wish
to meet with the FBI agent without counsel present. On that
basis, the attorney agreed to meet Deane at his home in Henrico
County, at 5:30 p.m., the time of the scheduled interview by the

FBI agent.

14. At approximately 5:15 p.m. the attorney arrived at
Deane's home to await the arrival of the FBI agent.
15. At approximately 6:20 p.m., believing that the FBI

agent would not appear as scheduled, the attorney decided to
leave Deane's home.

16. After departing the Deane residence, and traveling
from the immediate neighborhood for some distance, the attorney
returned to the vicinity of Deane's home to determine whether the
FBI agent in fact had arrived subsequent to the attorney's
departure. Observing no indication that anyone had arrived at
Deane's home, the attorney again departed.

A. The First Fncountexr

17. Shortly thereafter, Deane left his home to run an
errand, got in his automobile, and drove on a public street in
his neighborhood.

18. As Deane was approaching the intersection of
Peabody and Reynolds Avenues, an open and public thoroughfare in

BN
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the County of Henrico, Commonwealth of Virginia, defendants Light
and Doe, who were seated in and operating a white Chevrolet
automobile, rapidly drove to within two or three inches of and
stopped perpendicularly to Deane's vehicle, forcing him to slam
suddenly on his brakes to avoid a collision, blocking Deane's
path, and preventing his vehicle from proceeding forward.

195. Defendants Light and Doe jumped out of their
vehicle and approached Deane's vehicle, with defendant Light on
the driver's side of Deane's vehicle at the window where Deane
was sitting, and defendant Doe on the passenger's side of Deane's
vehicle, physically blocking Deane from exiting his vehicle or
driving away.

20. The sudden, startling and violent behavior and
movements of defendants Light and Doe and their vehicle caused
Deane fear, anxiety, mental anguish, embarrassment, emotional
pain, and suffering.

21. Defendant Light'forcibly shoved into Deane's face
what appeared to be an official blue and white identification and
badge, and said that he and Doe were "Special Agents of the
Justice Department" working under the ‘"special jurisdiction of

the Grand Jury."



22. Defendant Light made these statements with the
specific intent to mislead, harass, and intimidate Deane and to
deprive Deane of his liberty, privacy and dignity.

23. Defendants Light and Doe knew at the time that
they had no probable cause to Sstop and detain Deane, and they
knew at that time that they were violating Deane's clearly
established rights to liberty and freedom from unreasonable
seizure, as guaranteed under the Fourth Amendment to the
Constitution of the United States.

24. Deane, believed that the agents were armed with
weapons because of the manner iﬁ which they positioned their
hands near their hips, and the visible bulges in their waist
bands, and was intimidated and frightened by defendant Light's
encroaching proximity and harsh tone of voice.

25. When Deane asked defendant Light what he wanted,
defendant Light asked Deane who the man was who had just left his
house, implying that defendants Light and Doe, through their
surveillance of Deane and his home, had observed the attorney
enter and leave Deane's house.

26. Deane responded that the man was a lawyer, to
which defendant Light responded "That's what we figured, "
laughingly remarking that the attorney was very clever by driving

BN
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back to Deane's house after having left when the agents had
failed to show up for the interview at the appointed time.

27. Deane then asked why defendants Light and Doe did
not come to Deane's house for the interview if they knew the man
was a lawyer, to which defendant Light responded, in words or
substance, "Because we don't want to talk to a lawyer; we want to
talk to you."

28. Deane then stated that he did not wish to talk to
the agents without a lawyer, handed defendant Light the business
card of the attorney, and requested that they call him before
conducting an interview of Deane.

29. Defendant Light responded to Deane in a sarcastic
manner stating, in words or substance, "We'll call him (the
attorney), but we'll be talking to you, too," threatening they
would continue their efforts to talk to Deane, whether he wanted
to be interviewed or not.

30. Deane, under stress, again asked defendant Light
what he wanted with Deane, stating that he was a simple, hard-
working man, and did not know any information which he thought

would be of interest to the defendants.



31. Defendant Light then responded by asking Deane why
he would need a lawyer if he did not have any information that
would be of interest to them.

32. Defendant Light then asked Deane how he had gotten
the attorney to come to his home, to which Deane responded that
he had informed his management of the agent's telephone call the
day before.

33. Defendant Light thereupon threateningly stated
"We'll be seeing you," as defendants Light and Doe returned to
their vehicle and drove from the area.

34. Deane observed two neighbors standing in their
yards near the intersection of Peabody and Reynolds Avenues at
the time that he was forcibly stopped and detained by defendants
Light and Doe. |

35. Deane was shaken by this encounter and, having
been made to feel worthless by the defendants, was overwhelmed by
fear and anxiety.

36. Deane was so stunned and mentally crushed by this
encounter that it took him several minutes to regain enough
composure to drive his car.

37. Deane thereafter learned from his son that a child

who resides in the neighborhood had come to Deane's home and



informed Deane's son that the "police had your daddy out in the
street."
B. The Second Encounter

38. On or about April 17, 1996, Deane was operating
his vehicle on an open and public thoroughfare, in the vicinity
of Maplewood Avenue and South Meadow Street, within the limits of
the City of Richmond, Commonwealth of Virginia, when ---
completely unexpectedly --- defendants Light and Doe, who were
seated in and operating a burgundy Buick automobile, rapidly
drove past and again cut in front of Deane's vehicle, blocking
the path of Deane and his vehicle, thus preventing Deane from
proceeding forward.

39. Defendants Light and Doe again, as they had done
on or about April 12, 1996, jumped out of their vehicle and
approached Deane's vehicle, with defendant Light on the driver's
side of Deane's vehicle at the window where Deane was sitting,
and defendant Doe on the passenger's side of the Deane vehicle.

40. When Deane opened the driver's side door to exit
his vehicle, defendant Light forcibly pushed the driver's side

door with his knee, causing it to slam shut against Deane's body.
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41. Deane was so intimidated by defendant Light's
violent behavior that he was afraid to attempt to exit his
vehicle again.

42. Defendants Light and Doe knew at the time that
they had no probable cause to stop and detain Deane, and they
knew at that time that they were again violating Deane's clearly
established rights to liberty and freedom from unreasonable
seizure, as guaranteed under the Fourth Amendment to the
Constitution of the United States.

43. The sudden, startling and violent behavior and
movements of defendants Light.and Doe and their vehicle again
caused Deane fear, anxiety, mental anguish, embarrassment,
emotional pain, and suffering.

44. Defendant Light, threatening and intimidating
Deane, told Deane, in words or in substance, that the "multi-
district grand jury would hold you in contempt" and that the
grand jury could "send you to jail for contempt and conspiracy, "
if Deane refused to talk to the agents.

45. Defendant Light further told Deane that he and
defendant Doe could "lock him up for 72 hours without anyone

knowing anything about it," and that Deane could be imprisoned

11



for so long that Deane's "grandchildren's children won't know
you."

46. Defendants Light and Doe knew that these
statements were false at the time they were made and were
knowingly made with the specific intent to intimidate Deane, and
to deprive him of his liberty and privacy, to violate his rights
under the Constitution and laws of the United States.

47. Defendant Light further told Deane that he was
"expendable," and threateningly told Deane, in words or
substance, that Deane should be mindful of the fact that the
"lowest man on the totem pole in Watergate went to jail for eight
years."

48. Defendant Light again told Deane that Deane was
"expendable" because the agents represented some "big boys on the
Hill," alluding to high Government officials.

49. Deane, again believing that the agents were armed
with weapons because of the manner in which they positioned their
hands near their hips, and the visible bulges in their waist
bands, and feeling intimidated and frightened by the harsh tone
of voice of defendant Light, thereupon told defendant Light he

did not want to talk to the defendants, that he wanted an

12



attorney present, and asked the agents why they had not called
the attorney directly.

50. Defendant Light thereupon stated that he knew the
attorney very well, calling the attorney by his first given name,
and stated, in words or substance, that "Jack and I go way back,"
"We'll catch up to Jack," and "By the time Jack . . . catches up
to you, you'll be applying for Social Security."

51. Deane again stated that he wanted an attorney to
be present, to which defendant Light responded, in a threatening
and intimidating manner, "We'll be talking to you." Defendants
Light and Doe then left.

C. The Third Encounter

52. On or about April 25, 1996, Deane's spouse
received a telephone call at Deane's residence from, upon
information and belief, a man believed to be deféndant Light, who
threateningly commented on the residence of Deane and his family,
and threatened that Deane and his family could lose their home if
Deane did not cooperate.

53. On or about April 12 and April 17, 1996,
defendants Light and Doe stopped and detained Deane, made
knowingly false, threatening and intimidating statements to
Deane, and on or about April 25, 1996, made a threatening and

13



intimidating telephone call to Deane's home, with the specific
intent and knowledge that such behavior was in violation of
Deane's clearly established rights of liberty and freedom from
unreasonable seizure, as guaranteed under the Fourth Amendment to
the Constitution of the United States.

54. On or about April 12 and April 17, 1996,
defendants Light and Doe had no articulable suspicion to believe
that Deane had been, was presently or was about to be involved in
any criminal activity on either occasion when they stopped and
detained Deane against his will.

55. On or about April 12 and April 17, 1996,
Defendants Light and Doe knew of no exigent circumstances
relating to any ongoing investigation, and had no suspicion of
criminal activity that would have or could have justified the
stop, detention and harassment of Deane; and they knew or should
have known that their actions were unlawful and deprived Deane of
his constitutional rights.

56. On or about April 12 and April 17, 1996,
defendants Light and Doe violated the oath they took as FDA
agents, and knew no competent law enforcement officers, acting in
good faith, could reasonably have believed that such actions were
lawful.

14



57. On or about April 12 and April 17, 1996,
defendants Light and Doe toock all of these actions, as set forth
above, with the specific intent to deprive Deane of his rights,
and thereby deprived him of his rights under the Fourth and Fifth
Amendments to the Constitution of the United States.

58. As a direct result of being deprived of his
constitutional rights, Deane does not feel safe traveling on
public streets, and is afraid that he and his family can be
accosted in their home or automobile at any time by defendants
Light and Doe, or any other agents of the "Government."

59. As a direct result of being deprived of his
constitutional rights, Deane is afraid when he drives his vehicle
alone.

60. As a direct result of being deprived of his
constitutional rights, Deane feels degraded and humiliated, and
now feels that he is less of a citizen of these United States,
and he has a lowered sense of being a human being.

61. As a direct result of being deprived of his
constitutional rights, Deane has fear, anxiety and mental

anguish, and he has a loss of the enjoyment of his home, life and

liberty.
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62. As a direct result of defendant Light's and
defendant Doe's deliberate and knowing deprivation of Deane's
constitutional rights, Deane has a constant feeling of personal
violation, as if he has been emotionally "stripped" and "raped.*

COUNT I
Cco I ON the ITE TAT
(BIVENS CLAIM)

63. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 62 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

64. On or about April 12, 1996, defendants Light and
Doe, acting under the color of federal law, deprived Deane of his
rights, privileges, and immunities secured by the Fourth and
Fifth Amendments to the Constitution and the laws of the United
States.

65. On or about April 12, 1996, each defendant, while
acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully and without
Deane's agreement and consent, willfully, wantonly and

intentionally threatened Deane, deprived him of his liberty,

privacy, and dignity, and put him in reasonable fear of injury.

16



66. Defendants' willful and malicious actions toward
Deane were committed outside the scope of their employment, and
without regard to Deane's well-being or constitutional rights.

67. As a direct and proximate result of each of the
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton acts, as set forth
above, Deane has been injured and damaged.

68. Defendants' willful and malicious actions toward
Deane were not a good faith exercise of their federal authority,
and defendants knew or should have known that their actions
violated clearly established rights of Deane under the Fourth and
Fifth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States.

€9. No other means exist, save this Court, to
safeguard and enforce the protection of Deane's clearly
established constitutional rights.

70. The assessment of money damages against defendants
Light and Doe is appropriate because it deters the future
deprivation of clearly established rights by federal agents such
as these defendants.

71. As a direct and proximate result of each of the
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set

forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.
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72. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set forth herein,
Deane has suffered emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience,
humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings, and loss of
enjoyment of life, warranting the imposition of exemplary and

punitive damages.

COUNT II
CONSTITUTION of the UNITED STATES
(BIVENS CLAIM)

73. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 72 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

74. On or about April 17, 1996, defendants Light and
Doe, acting under the color of federal law, deprived Deane of his
rights, privileges, and immunities secured by the Fourth and
Fifth Amendments to the Constitution and by the laws of the
United States. |

75. On or about April 17, 1996, each defendant, while
acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully and without
Deane's agreement and consent, willfully, wantonly and
intentionally threatened Deane, and put him in reasonable fear of
injury.

18



76 . Defendants' willful and malicious actions towards
Deane were committed outside the scope of their employment, and
without regard to Deane's well-being or constitutional rights.

77. As a direct and proximate result of each of the
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton acts, as set forth
herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

78. Defendants' willful and malicious actions toward
Deane were not a good faith exercise of their federal authority,
and defendants knew or should have known that their actions
violated clearly established rights afforded to Deane under the
Fourth and Fifth Amendments to the Constitution of the United
States.

79. No other means exist, save this Court, to
safeguard and enforce the protection of Deane's clearly

established constitutional rights.

80. The assessment of money damages against defendants
Light and Doe is appropriate because it deters the future
deprivation of clearly established rights by federal agents such
as these defendants.

81l. As a direct and proximate result of each of the
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.
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82. As a direct and proximate result of defendants®
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth above, Deane has
suffered emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, humiliation,
indignity and injury to his feelings, and loss of enjoyment of

life, warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive

damages.
COUNT III
VIOLATION OF
ARTICLE £ th ONSTITUTION of VIRGINIA

83. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 82 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

84. On or about April 12, 1996, defendants' actions
of intentionally, willfully and wantonly assaulting Deane,
depriving Deane of his physical liberty, falsely imprisoning
Deane, and inflicting emotional distress upon Deane, violated
Deane's right to pursue and obtain happiness and safety as
guaranteed Article I, § 1 of the Constitution of the Commonwealth
of Virginia.

85. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

20



86. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
maliciocus and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings,

warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.

COUNT IV
VIOLATION OF
ARTICLE I, 8§ 11 of the CONSTITUTION of VIRGINIA

87. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 86 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

88. On or about April 12, 1996, defendants' actions of
intentionally, willfully and wantonly assaulting Deane, depriving
Deane of his physical liberty, and falsely imprisoning Deane,
without due process of law, violated Deane's rights guaranteed by
Article I, § 11 of the Constitution of the Commoﬁwealth of
Virginia.

89. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

90. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'

malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
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suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.
COUNT V - ASSAULT

91. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 90 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

92. On or about April 12, 1996, defendants Light and
Doe, while acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully
and without Deane's agreement and consent, willfully, wantonly
and intentionally threatened Deane, and put him in fear of
injury.

93. Defendants' negligent, willful and malicious
actions toward Deane were committed outside the scope of their
employment, and without regard to Deane's well-being or legal
rights.

94. As a direct and proximate result of each of the
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

95. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'

malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
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suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.
VI - FALSE P

96. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 95 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

97. On or about April 12, 1996, each defendant, while
acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully and without
Deane's consent or agreement, willfully, wantonly and
intentionally restricted Deane's freedom of movement, without any
legal right to do so.

98. Defendants' intentional, negligent, willful and
malicious actions toward Deane were committed outside the scope
of their employment, and without regard to Deane's well-being or
legal rights.

99. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

100. As a direct and proximate resuit of defendants'

malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
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suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings,
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.

COUNT VII
ONAL INFLICTT F _EMOTIONAL DISTRES

101. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 100 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

102. On or about April 12, 1996, defendants' actions
of intentionally, willfully and wantonly assaulting Deane, while
acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully and without
Deane's consent or agreement, deprived Deane of his physical
liberty and falsely imprisoned Deane, and said actions were
intentional and reckless.

103. Defendants' actions of intentionally, willfully
and wantonly assaulting Deane, deprived Deane of his physical
liberty and falsely imprisoned Deane, and said actions were
outrageous and intolerable.

104. Defendants' actions of intentionally, willfully
and wantonly assaulting Deane, deprived him of his physical
liberty and falsely imprisoned him, and were committed outside

the scope of their employment.
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105. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendant's malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been severely and emotionally traumatized
and distressed.

106. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

107. The injuries suffered by Deane are causally
connected to each act of each defendant intentionally, willfully
and wantonly assaulting Déane, depriving Deane of his physical
liberty and falsely imprisoning Deane.

108. As a direct and proximate result of defendants®
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered severe emotional humiliation, indignity and injury to
his feelings, warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive

damages.

COUNT VIII
VIOLATION OF
ART E e S ION v I
109. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 108 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set

forth at length herein.
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110. On or about April 17, 1996, defendants' actions
of intentionally, willfully and wantonly assaulting Deane,
depriving Deane of his physical liberty, falsely imprisoning
Deane, and inflicting emotional distress upon Deane, violated
Deane's right to pursue and obtain happiness and safety
guaranteed by Article I, § 1 of the Constitution of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

111. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

112. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings,
warraﬁting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.

COUNT IX |
VIOLATION OF

AR L the VIRGINIA CON TUTION

113. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 112 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

114. On or about April 17, 1996, defendants' actions
of intentionally, willfully and wantonly assaulting Deane,
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depriving Deane of his physical liberty, and falsely imprisoning
Deane, without due process of law, violated Deane's rights
guaranteed by Article I, § 11 of the Constitution of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

11S. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

116. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings,
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.

0 X -

117. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 116 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

118. On or about April 17, 1996, defendants Light and
Doe, while acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully
and without Deane's agreement and consent, willfully, wantonly
and intentionally threatened Deane, and put him in fear of

injury.
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119. Defendants' negligent, willful and malicious
actions toward Deane were committed outside the scope of their
employment, and without regard to Deane's well-being or legal
rights.

120. As a direct and proximate result of each of the
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

121. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings,
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.

co XI - FALSE RISO

122. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 121 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

123. On or about April 17, 1996, defendants Light and
Doe willfully, wantonly and intentionally restricted Deane's
freedom of movement, without any legal right to do so.

124. Defendants' intentional negligent, willful and
malicious treatment of Deane was committed outside the scope of
their employment and while acting under claim of federal
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authority, and without regard to Deane's well-being or legal
rights.

125. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton acts, as set forth
herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

126. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings,
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.

COUNT XII
ION OF ON.

127. Deane repeats, reiterates and realleges each and
every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 126 of this
Complaint, with the same force and effect as though fully set
forth at length herein.

128. On or about April 17, 1996, defendants' actions
of intentionally, willfully and wantonly assaulting Deane, while
acting under claim of federal authority, unlawfully and without
Deane's consent or agreement, deprived Deane of his physical

liberty and falsely imprisoned Deane, and said actions were

intentional and reckless.
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129. Defendants' actions of intentionally, willfully
and wantonly assaulting Deane, deprived Deane of his physical

liberty and falsely imprisoned Deane, and said actions were

outrageous and intolerable.

130. Defendants' actions of intentionally, willfully
and wantonly assaulting Deane, deprived him of his physical
liberty and falsely imprisoned him, and were committed outside
the scope of their employment.

131. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been severely traumatized and distressed.

132. As a direct and proximate result of each
defendants' malicious, intentional and wanton actions, as set
forth herein, Deane has been injured and damaged.

133. The injuries suffered by Deane are causally
connected to each act of each defendant intentionally, willfully
and wantonly assaulting Deane, depriving Deane of his physical
liberty and falsely imprisoning Deane.

134. As a direct and proximate result of defendants'
malicious and wanton actions, as set forth herein, Deane has
suffered humiliation, indignity and injury to his feelings
warranting the imposition of exemplary and punitive damages.
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WHEREFORE, plaintiff Mark Deane prays that this Court
enter judgment against defendants Gary Dean Light and John Doe,

jointly and individually, for the following relief:

A. compensatory damages against each of the

defendants, jointly and severally, in the amount of $2,000,000;

B. punitive damages against each of them, jointly and

severally, in the amount of $4,000,000;

C. reasonable attorneys' fees and costs; and

D. such other and further relief as the Court may deem

just and proper.

IRIAL BY JURY IS DEMANDED

Respectfully submitted,

WILDER & GREGORY

Rdgii X_Gfefory |
VS 20230
Suite 1000
707 East Main Street

Richmond, Virginia 23219
(804) 643-8401

and

Ronald L. Garnett

[R.G. 4008]

One Battery Park Plaza
New York, New York 10004
(212) 837-6966

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Mark Deane
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